#### **SPIL Revision Instrument - FINAL**

State: MONTANA

#### STATE PLAN FOR Independent Living (SPIL)

Chapter 1, Title VII of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as Amended

STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES (SILS) PROGRAM PART B

CENTERS FOR INDEPENDENT LIVING (CIL) PROGRAM PART C

FISCAL YEARS \_\_\_\_\_\_\_

Effective Date: October 1, 2007

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### Part I: Assurances

Section 1: Legal Basis and Certifications	3
Section 2: SPIL Development	3
Section 3: Independent Living Services	5
Section 4: Eligibility	5
Section 5: Staffing Requirements	5
Section 6: Fiscal Control and Fund Accounting	
Section 7: Recordkeeping, Access and Reporting	
Section 8: Protection, Use and Release of Personal Information	7
Section 9: Signatures	7
÷	

#### Part II: Narrative

Section 1: Goals, Objectives and Activities	8
Section 2: Scope, Extent, and Arrangements of Services	
Section 3: Design for the Statewide Network of Centers	
Section 4: Designated State Unit (DSU)	32
Section 5: Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC)	
Section 6: Service Provider Requirements	
Section 7: Evaluation	
Section 8: State-Imposed Requirements	38

#### Attachments

Attachment I: Organization Chart

#### PART I: Assurances

State of: MONTANA

#### Section 1: Legal Basis and Certifications

- 1.1 The designated State unit (DSU) eligible to submit the State Plan for Independent Living (SPIL or the plan) and authorized under State law to perform the functions of the State under the State Independent Living Services (SILS) and Centers for Independent Living (CIL) programs is <u>The Montana Department of Public Health and Human Services –Disability</u> <u>Transitions Programs</u> (insert name of DSU). 34 CFR 76.104(a)(1) and (2); 34 CFR 364.22(a)
- 1.2 The separate State agency eligible to submit the plan and authorized under State law to provide vocational rehabilitation (VR) services to individuals who are blind is Disability Transitions Programs (insert name of separate State agency). Indicate N/A if not applicable. 34 CFR 76.104(a)(1) and (2); 34 CFR 364.20(d) and 364.22(c)
- 1.3 The Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC) that meets the requirements of section 705 of the Act and is authorized to perform the functions outlined in section 705(c) of the Act in the State is <u>Montana Statewide Independent Living Council</u> (insert name of SILC). 34 *CFR* 364.21(a)
- 1.4 The DSU and, if applicable, the separate State agency authorized to provide VR services to individuals who are blind, and the SILC are authorized to jointly develop, sign and submit this SPIL on behalf of the State, and have adopted or otherwise formally approved the SPIL. 34 CFR 76.104(a)(7); 34 CFR 364.20(c) and (d)
- 1.5 The DSU, and, if applicable, the separate State agency authorized to provide VR services to individuals who are blind, may legally carry out each provision of the plan and will comply with all applicable Federal statutes and regulations in effect with respect to the three-year period it receives funding under the SPIL. *34 CFR 76.104; 34 CFR 80.11(c)*
- 1.6 The SPIL is the basis for State operation and administration of the program. All provisions of the SPIL are consistent with State law.  $34 \ CFR \ 76.104(a)(4) \ and \ (8)$
- 1.7 The representative of the DSU and, if applicable, of the separate State agency authorized to provide VR services to individuals who are blind, who has the authority under State law to receive, hold, and disburse Federal funds made available under the SPIL and to submit the SPIL jointly with the SILC chairperson is <u>Jim Marks, Administrator of Disability</u> <u>Transitions Programs</u> (Name, title of DSU director) and Jim Marks, Administrator of Disability Transitions Programs (Name, title of separate State agency director, if applicable). 34 CFR 76.104(a)(5) and (6)

3 of 50

#### Section 2: SPIL Development

- 2.1 The plan shall be reviewed and revised not less than once every three years, to ensure the existence of appropriate planning, financial support and coordination, and other assistance to appropriately address, on a statewide and comprehensive basis, the needs in the State for:
  - The provision of State independent living services;
  - The development and support of a statewide network of centers for independent living; and
  - Working relationships between programs providing independent living services and independent living centers, the vocational rehabilitation program established under title I, and other programs providing services for individuals with disabilities. 34 CFR 364.20(f)
- 2.2 The DSU and SILC conduct public meetings to provide all segments of the public, including interested groups, organizations and individuals, an opportunity to comment on the State plan prior to its submission to the Commissioner and on any revisions to the approved State plan. 34 CFR 364.20(g)(1)
- 2.3 The DSU and SILC establish and maintain a written description of procedures for conducting public meetings in accordance with the following requirements. The DSU and SILC shall provide:
  - appropriate and sufficient notice of the public meetings (that is, at least 30 days prior to the public meeting through various media available to the general public, such as newspapers and public service announcements, and through specific contacts with appropriate constituency groups and organizations identified by the DSU and SILC);
  - reasonable accommodation to individuals with disabilities who rely on alternative modes of communication in the conduct of the public meetings, including providing sign language interpreters and audio-loops; and
  - public meeting notices, written material provided prior to or at the public meetings, and the approved State plan in accessible formats for individuals who rely on alternative modes of communication. 34 CFR 364.20(g)(2)
- 2.4 At the public meetings to develop the State plan, the DSU and SILC identify those provisions in the SPIL that are State-imposed requirements beyond what would be required to comply with the regulations in 34 CFR parts 364, 365, 366, and 367. *34 CFR 364.20(h)*
- 2.5 The DSU will seek to incorporate into, and describe in, the State plan any new methods or approaches for the provision of IL services to older individuals who are blind that are developed under a project funded under chapter 2 of title VII of the Act and that the DSU determines to be effective. 34 CFR 364.28
- 2.6 The DSU and SILC actively consult, as appropriate, in the development of the State plan with the director of the Client Assistance Program (CAP) authorized under section 112 of the Act. *34 CFR 364.20(e)*

#### Section 3: Independent Living Services

- 3.1 The State, directly or through grants or contracts, will provide IL services with Federal, State, or other funds. 34 CFR 364.43(b)
- 3.2 Independent living services shall be provided to individuals with significant disabilities in accordance with an independent living plan mutually agreed upon by an appropriate staff member of the service provider and the individual, unless the individual signs a waiver stating that such a plan is unnecessary. *34 CFR 364.43(c)*
- 3.3 All service providers will use formats that are accessible to notify individuals seeking or receiving IL services under chapter 1 of title VII about:
  - the availability of the CAP authorized by section 112 of the Act;
  - the purposes of the services provided under the CAP; and
  - how to contact the CAP. 34 CFR 364.30
- 3.4 Participating service providers meet all applicable State licensure or certification requirements. 34 CFR 365.31(c)

#### Section 4: Eligibility

- 4.1 Any individual with a significant disability, as defined in 34 CFR 364.4(b), is eligible for IL services under the SILS and CIL programs authorized under chapter 1 of title VII of the Act. Any individual may seek information about IL services under these programs and request referral to other services and programs for individuals with significant disabilities, as appropriate. The determination of an individual's eligibility for IL services under the SILS and CIL programs meets the requirements of 34 CFR 364.51. 34 CFR 364.40(a), (b) and (c)
- 4.2 Service providers apply eligibility requirements without regard to age, color, creed, gender, national origin, race, religion or type of significant disability of the individual applying for IL services. 34 CFR 364.41(a)
- 4.3 Service providers do not impose any State or local residence requirement that excludes any individual who is present in the State and who is otherwise eligible for IL services from receiving IL services. 34 CFR 364.41(b)

#### Section 5: Staffing Requirements

- 5.1 Service provider staff includes personnel who are specialists in the development and provision of IL services and in the development and support of centers. 34 CFR 364.23(a)
- 5.2 To the maximum extent feasible, a service provider makes available personnel able to communicate:

- with individuals with significant disabilities who rely on alternative modes of communication, such as manual communication, nonverbal communication devices, Braille or audio tapes, and who apply for or receive IL services under title VII of the Act; and
- in the native languages of individuals with significant disabilities whose English proficiency is limited and who apply for or receive IL services under title VII of the Act. 34 CFR 364.23(b)
- 5.3 Service providers establish and maintain a program of staff development for all classes of positions involved in providing IL services and, if appropriate, in administering the CIL program. The staff development programs emphasize improving the skills of staff directly responsible for the provision of IL services, including knowledge of and practice in the IL philosophy. 34 CFR 364.24
- 5.4 All recipients of financial assistance under parts B and C of chapter 1 of title VII of the Act will take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with significant disabilities on the same terms and conditions required with respect to the employment of individuals with disabilities under section 503 of the Act. 34 CFR 364.31

#### Section 6: Fiscal Control and Fund Accounting

6.1 All recipients of financial assistance under parts B and C of chapter 1 of title VII of the Act will comply with applicable EDGAR fiscal and accounting requirements and will adopt those fiscal control and fund accounting procedures as may be necessary to ensure the proper disbursement of and accounting for those funds. *34 CFR 364.34* 

#### Section 7: Recordkeeping, Access and Reporting

- 7.1 In addition to complying with applicable EDGAR recordkeeping requirements, all recipients of financial assistance under parts B and C of chapter 1 of title VII of the Act will maintain records that fully disclose and document:
  - the amount and disposition by the recipient of that financial assistance;
  - The total cost of the project or undertaking in connection with which the financial assistance is given or used;
  - the amount of that portion of the cost of the project or undertaking supplied by other sources;
  - compliance with the requirements of chapter 1 of title VII of the Act and Part 364 of the regulations; and
  - other information that the Commissioner determines to be appropriate to facilitate an effective audit. 34 CFR 364.35(a) and (b)
- 7.2 With respect to the records that are required by 34 CFR 364.35, all recipients of financial assistance under parts B and C of chapter 1 of title VII of the Act will submit reports that the Commissioner determines to be appropriate. *34 CFR 364.36*

7.3 All recipients of financial assistance under parts B and C of chapter 1 of title VII of the Act will provide access to the Commissioner and the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, to the records listed in 34 CFR 364.37 for the purpose of conducting audits, examinations, and compliance reviews. *34 CFR 364.37* 

#### Section 8: Protection, Use, and Release of Personal Information

8.1 Each service provider will adopt and implement policies and procedures to safeguard the confidentiality of all personal information, including photographs and lists of names in accordance with the requirements of 34 CFR 364.56(a)(1-6). *34 CFR 364.56(a)* 

#### **Section 9: Signatures**

After having carefully reviewed all of the assurances in section undersigned hereby affirm that the State of <u>Montana</u> is in compliance with the aforementioned assurances during <u>201</u> three-year period covered by this SPIL).	compliance and will	remain in
The effective date of this SPIL is October 1,2010	(year)	
SIGNATURE OF SILC CHAIRPERSON	DATE	
NAME OF SILC CHAIRPERSON		
SIGNATURE OF DSU DIRECTOR	DATE	
Jim Marks, Administrator of Disability Transitions Programs		
NAME AND TITLE OF DSU DIRECTOR		
SIGNATURE OF DIRECTOR OF THE SEPARATE STATE AGENCY FOR INDIVIDUALS WHO ARE BLIND	DATE	
Jim Marks, Administrator of Disability Transitions Programs		

NAME AND TITLE OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE SEPARATE STATE AGENCY FOR INDIVIDUALS WHO ARE BLIND State of: <u>Montana</u>

Part II: Narrative

Section 1: Goals, Objectives and Activities

#### 1.1 Goals and Mission - 34 CFR 364.42(b)(1)

Describe the overall goals and mission of the State's IL programs and services. The SPIL must address the goals and mission of both the SILS and the CIL programs, including those of the State agency for individuals who are blind as they relate to the parts of the SPIL administered by that agency.

It is the intent of the Montana Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC) and the Department of Public Health and Human Services - Disability Services Division (DSU) to develop and implement a SPIL that will: Make independent living a reality for Montanans with disabilities by promoting and practicing a philosophy of consumer control, development of a network of peer services, self-determination, self-help, equal access, and advocacy in order to maximize independence, integration and full inclusion of persons with disabilities into mainstream Montana.

The following are the goals of the SILS:

Goal one: To provide independent living (IL) services to as many people as possible in Montana.

This goal incorporates Summit's Consumer Services Priorities (Priority 3), NCIL'S Goal 5, MILP's Community Service and Outreach Goals (Priority 1), LIFTT's Goal 3 and incorporates the SILC's decision to use most of the Part B funds to contract with CILs in Montana. al Two: To provide outreach to underserved populations in Montana to gain a better understanding of how to provide appropriate services to populations designated as underserved, which are youth with disabilities, Native Americans, and people with disabilities seeking employment.

This goal incorporates NCIL's goal 4, LIFTT's Goal 2 and Summit's Priority Areas for Outreach Efforts (Priority 1).

Goal three: To support a statewide network of CILs.

<u>Goal four:</u> To support involvement with other organizations that promote services or advocacy efforts related to the disability community.

This goal incorporates NCIL's goals 1, and 2; MILP's Advocacy/Systems Change Goals: Priority 1, 2 and 3; Summit's Consumer Services Priorities (Priority 4 and 5), Priority Areas for Advocacy Efforts (Priority 6); and LIFTT's goals 1 and 2.

Goal five: To coordinate independent living task forces to carry out legislative and systems advocacy efforts to address the statewide priority issues established at an October 2009 symposium held in Billings with 150 participants that included the directors and staff of all 4 Montana CILs, board members of some Montana CILs, SILC members, DSU staff and IL consumers. The independent living task forces established, and the priority statewide issues **Commented [M1]:** Julie will reference CIL 3 year plan goals for all SPIL goals

## identified at the October 2009 symposium and reaffirmed at a second symposium held in Missoula in July 2010, are:

#### Health Care Task Force

- Equalize Medicaid Medically Needy spend down amount with SSI income limit
- Advocate for additional HCBS waiver slots, maintenance of provider rate increases, and adequate funding for personal assistance services and other long-term services and supports
- Promote the Montana Medicaid for Workers with Disabilities (Medicaid Buy In) program so people with disabilities statewide can maintain Medicaid benefits on the job

#### Youth with Disabilities Task Force

- Explore possibilities to establish self-directed IEPs for high school students with disabilities statewide
- Advocate that VR counselors consistently begin attending IEPs when high school students turn 16 to improve transition outcomes statewide

#### Funding Issues Task Force

- Maintain adequate funding for Montana Centers for Independent Living & SILC
- Maintain adequate funding for programs that support independent living needs of consumers

#### Self Determination Task Force

- Establish a mechanism to ensure "Nothing About Us Without Us" in state government
- Advocate better enforcement of building code standards for accessibility statewide
- Advocate that any changes to Montana election laws such as mail balloting provide for accessibility and voting privacy for citizens with disabilities
- Advocate for the re-establishment of a specialized clinic or other means to accurately diagnose and treat people who experience post polio syndrome

#### Housing Task Force

- Promote the concept of visitability in new housing construction statewide to increase the stock of housing that is usable for people with disabilities
- Advocate for increased numbers of subsidized housing vouchers available across the state to expand options for affordable and accessible housing
- Promote Fair Housing issues to minimize discrimination and expand housing opportunities for people with disabilities

#### **Transportation Task Force**

- Increase coordination and advocacy resources for Transportation Advisory Committees so they may strengthen linkages and resources in and between Montana's communities
- Advocate for increased funding and expanded transportation resources not only to maintain current level services, but to increase services to address unmet needs

#### Montana American Indian and Disability Initiatives Task Force

• Develop a statewide resource list of resources, programs and services available for

American Indians with disabilities, particularly those living on reservations

Advocate for Social Security liaisons or other means to increase acceptance of Indian ٠ health clinic (Indian Health Service or Tribal Health Clinic) doctors' diagnoses of people's disabilities

#### **Public Relations/Education Task Force**

- Develop talking point documents to be used by all four CILs to consistently promote independent living philosophy, services and systems advocacy/social change efforts statewide
- Develop statewide media contact lists to support ongoing media advocacy efforts •

The following are the missions and goals of Montana's CILs:

The CIL goals that are mentioned above as being incorporated into the SPIL are the CIL goals supported by the plan. The other goals are more local in nature and are supported by funds outside of this plan.

The mission of North Central Independent Living Services (NCILS) is:

This organization is established for the purpose of providing access to a more independent lifestyle for persons with disabilities through advocacy, public education, coordination of services, and information as directed by consumer need. The corporation shall be guided by the principles of consumer control which include as much independence for the person as possible, the chance for a person to experience life to its fullest potential, to advocate for barrier free communities, to give accountability and credibility to a person's own choice with a right to independence. It is our purpose to assure that persons with disabilities are recognized as individuals with the same basic rights, needs and desires as any non-disabled individual.

These rights include but are not limited to: achieving as much physical and psychological independence as their disability will allow; participating in social, recreational, political, religious and community activities and events; accessibility to public transportation, housing, educational and employment opportunities.

The following are NCILS' goals (modified from three year work-plan):

- Goal 1: Provide advocacy skills training to educate consumer peer advocates and the public about disability issues.
- Goal 2: Make available CIL resources to support public actions to increase community access. Goal 3: Advance the Montana Symposium peer task forces activities.
- Goal 4: Conduct outreach activities to increase the number of people served who are members of populations that are currently unserved or underserved.
- Goal 5: Provide IL services to 100 new individuals with disabilities.

Montana Independent Living Project's (MILP) mission is to promote independence for people with disabilities.

MILP is a not-for-profit agency striving to support the development and expansion of community based services which directly facilitate independence, productivity and quality of life for people with disabilities.

Commented [M2]: UJulie willpdate w/ current mission and goals

The following are MILP's goals (modified from the 2008-2011 three year plan): Consumer Services and Outreach Goals:

Priority 1: Continue providing core services to consumers.

Priority 2: Outreach to Montana State University (MSU) Bozeman's disability service components and students with disabilities to increase understanding of IL and its philosophy model and self-determination practices.
Priority 3: Augment information and referral services to Social Security eligible individuals.

Priority 4: Increase access to health care and technology through community capacity building involving Montana blind and low vision citizens.

Advocacy/Systems Change Goals:

Priority 1: Develop cooperative relationship between Montana ADRC and MILP to establish a "no wrong door" approach to service delivery.

- Priority 2: Maintain MILP's role as a disability resource for technical assistance, training and systems change/advocacy.
- Priority 3: Increase health care promotion through community education/public information in health and recreation facilities.
- Priority 4: Continue and maintain MILP's various transportation related partnerships and capacity option development.
- Priority 5: Serve as a resource regarding accessible housing and livable communities.
- Priority 6: Monitor and advocate state and national legislative and policy issues.
- Resource Development Goals:
- Priority 1: Increase outreach in MILP's service area via additional resources and professional services.
- Priority 2: Enhance peer advocacy program to involve additional consumers in peer support activities and mentoring across MILP's service area.
- Priority 3: Research, investigate and develop technology options which increase MILP's efficiency and cost-effective operations.
- Priority 4: Maintain competitive staff wages, salaries, and benefits for comparable jobs in state government and the private sector.
- Priority 5: Continue to provide suitable staff and board member training consistent with long-term strategic planning.

Summit Independent Living Center's mission is to promote community awareness, equal access, and the independence of people with disabilities through advocacy, education and the advancement of civil rights.

The following are Summit's priorities (modified from 2010 three year work-plan): Consumer Services Priorities

Priority 1: Enhance peer mentoring program to include broader notion of peer support (beyond one-on-one matches) and involve more consumers in peer support activities.

Priority 2: Explore options for increasing consumer involvement in community activities to lessen loneliness and isolation; and continue independent living skills training classes and workshops.

Priority 3: Continue core and other IL services.

Priority 4: Build on nursing home and hospital transition services in Missoula established in conjunction with the Aging and Disability Resource Center (ADRC) program with Missoula Aging Services.

Priority 5: Priority 4: Provide health promotion services to people with disabilities in conjunction with activities of the Montana Disability and Health (MTDH) program at the Rural Institute on Disabilities.

Priority Areas for Advocacy Efforts

Priority 1: Advocate for expanded community based services and long-term care options.

Priority 2: Monitor and state and federal legislation and conduct legislative advocacy and educational activities to advance disability issues on the local, state and federal levels. Priority 3: Continue to expand and support transportation options for people with disabilities in Summit's service area through ongoing involvement in local Transportation Advisory Committees (TACs).

Priority 4: Continue to advocate for improvement in the accessibility of at least 12 businesses, outdoor recreation sites, public facilities, and housing units in western Montana each year including promoting increased accessibility of health-related facilities and the concept of "visit-ability" in new housing construction.

Priority 5: Increase peer advocate involvement in Summit public education and community awareness efforts through school presentations, disability awareness training, fair booths, and other methods. Conduct a minimum of 40 such activities per year.

Priority 6: Collaborate with consumer groups in other communities and with the Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC) to coordinate local advocacy initiatives.

#### Priority Areas for Outreach Efforts

Priority 1: Summit will focus outreach efforts on Native Americans, youth with disabilities, people who are deaf, and rural areas in western Montana.

#### Priority Areas for Resource Development

Priority 1: Seek grants and other funding opportunities to improve Summit's programs and services, improve staff wages, upgrade technology; and explore purchasing a building for Summit's Missoula office when current lease expires in 2011.

Priority Areas for Training of Staff and Board Members

Priority 1: Continue to provide or arrange for periodic training opportunities for staff, peers, and board members through in service training, participation in workshops and training seminars, and attendance at relevant state and national conferences.

Living Independently for Today and Tomorrow's (LIFTT) mission is: Living Independently for Today and Tomorrow is a Montana non-profit (501 C3) organization committed to empowering persons with disabilities to live freely and equally in Montana through the provision of independent living services which reduce societal barriers. The following are LIFTT's goals (modified from 2010 three year plan):

Goal 1: Engage in collaboration activities in order to support advocacy issues and services for persons with disabilities.

Goal 2: Provide community education and outreach to rural communities and to serve the unserved and underserved populations identified in LIFTT's 18 counties, which include but is not limited to, women, American Indians and youth.

Goal 3: Provide core service delivery and self-directed personal assistance services.

Goal 4: Promote IL philosophy throughout the service area.

Goal 5: Continue to develop sources of non-restricted revenue by conducting at least one fund raising activity per year and partnering with or submitting at least one grant request to demonstrate or enhance IL services and philosophy.

Goal 6: Conduct personnel and board of directors hiring and development activities.

Goal 7: Complete administrative activities.

Goal 8: Executive planning and evaluation functions.

#### 1.2 Objectives - 34 CFR 364.42(a)(1) and (d); 34 CFR 364.32; 34 CFR 364.33

#### 1.2A Specify the objectives to be achieved and the time frame for achieving them.

Because many of the CILs goals are incorporated into SILS goals, objectives are only detailed for the SILS goals.

Explanation of procedure for carrying out goals and objectives:

- CIL actions are based upon direction of the CIL director and when necessary will have been approved by the CIL governing board.
- SILC actions are guided by decisions and actions of either the full SILC or the Executive Committee. The SILC and Executive Committee provides guidance to the SILC committees that do most of the plan development of SILC initiatives. SILC committees often include non-SILC members. As an example, all SILC committees have at least one CIL director on the committee and all CIL directors serve on at least one SILC committee. So, even though there is only one CIL director on the SILC, all CIL directors are actively involved in the planning process of SILC activities and goals. It should be noted that all four CIL directors sit on the Legislative/Advocacy Committee which is most active in the planning of the overarching goals of the SILC that impact changes to improve the lives of persons with disabilities across Montana.
- The program manager carries out activities as assigned by the SILC, the Executive Committee, or the other SILC committees. Activities most often assigned include:
  - Arranging meetings of full SILC, committees, and statewide meetings.

- Research related to a variety of issues and potential resources
- Draft development of a variety of documents required by activities of the SILC

Goal one: To provide independent living (IL) services to as many people as possible in Montana.

Objective 1: During each year of the plan, at least 233 new consumers will be found eligible and have services initiated by Montana's network of CILs through the Part B and MT General Fund contracts.

Objective 2: During each year of the plan, at least 50 activities involving local advocacy to improve the lives of persons with disabilities in areas such as housing, health promotion, transportation, accessibility, and youth transition will be carried out by Montana's network of CILs with SILC members being involved in at least 15 of the advocacy activities. Examples include: advocating for increasing the accessible units in local housing programs; recruiting and orienting persons with disabilities to serve on local transportation advisory committees; and developing, coordinating, and promoting a local care giver conference.

With regard to Objectives 1 and 2 of this goal, if the funds are available to the DSU to increase the funding in the CIL contracts, the number of new consumers served will be increased proportionately to the previous cost per consumer. A similar increase can be expected in systems change activities. Also, if the contract funding available decreases a similar decrease in new consumers served and systems change activities can be expected. Objective 3: Each year of the plan, in order to monitor the provision of services, the DSU program manager will conduct a site visit to review case records, conduct interviews, and other activities necessary to assess the service delivery system of two CILs. As part of the evaluation of this goal, a SILC representative will accompany the program manager on the site visits.

Within sixty days following the site visit, a written report will be developed and delivered to the CIL director, with a copy to be delivered to the CIL board. A report will be provided to the full SILC at the SILC meeting following the site visit.

Objective 4: Each year of the plan, the DSU will provide the administrative support necessary to compile the contracts to provide services through the CILs. As part of the evaluation of this goal, the Bylaws/Budget Committee of the SILC will review and provide input on the contracts.

Objective 5: During each year of the plan, the DSU program manager will consult with CIL directors and SILC members to gather information to draft a report for the Governor that will also be distributed to state legislators. The draft will be reviewed by the SILC chair and revised as necessary prior to final distribution.

<u>Goal two:</u> To provide outreach to underserved populations in Montana to gain a better understanding of how to provide appropriate services to populations designated as underserved.

Objective 1: Each year of the plan, each of the CILs under contract with the DSU will conduct at least one systems change activity (see explanation of systems change and examples in Goal One; Objective 2) that supports an independent living issue of importance to consumers from one of the designated underserved populations.

Commented [M3]: Julie will Update w/ current totals from contracts.

**Commented [M4]:** Mike M will update Revise w/ local advocacy info ---maybe delete

**Commented [M5]:** Mike M will contact CIL directors & update Add Medicaid Buy-in, urban Indian Centers, etc under objectives

14 of 50

Objective 2: Each year of the plan, the SILC will invite representatives from one of the identified underserved populations to present at a SILC meeting to provide guidance on methods of adapting the four core services to better serve that population.

Objective 3: Each year of the plan, the CILs will continue to collaborate with the urban Indian centers and other tribal agencies located in their service area regarding outreach to appropriate consumers served by the urban Indian centers. The CIL directors will report on the outcomes of these collaborative efforts at a SILC meeting each year.

Objective 4: Before the end of the first year of this plan, the CIL directors will report to the SILC their plans for outreach to Native Americans who live off the reservations and outside of the communities where the urban Indian centers are located, and the results of outreach efforts.

Objective 5: Each year of the plan, the CILs will continue to collaborate with the Section 121 projects and other tribal programs on the reservations located in their service areas regarding outreach to appropriate consumers served by the 121 projects and other tribal programs. The CIL directors will report on the outcomes of these collaborative efforts at a SILC meeting each year.

Objective 6: Each year of the plan, at a SILC meeting, the CIL directors will present the initiatives they have carried out that year to outreach to the identified underserved populations groups and provide data and other evidence of the outcomes of those efforts.

Objective 7: Throughout the plan, the SILC will maintain a youth member (age 18-28) on the SILC. If the youth member ages out and continues on the SILC, another member meeting the age criteria will be recruited when a vacancy occurs.

Objective 8: Throughout the plan, the SILC will have an active Underserved Committee that meets at least three times per year and provides guidance to the SILC on underserved populations, including evaluation of the efforts to outreach to the underserved populations.

Objective 9: Throughout the plan, there will be a director or representative of 121 projects on the SILC.

Objective 10: In order to meet the cross-disability responsibility of IL, the SILC will have one disability specific presentation at a SILC meeting each year of this plan to keep current with needs and initiatives of specific disabilities.

Goal three: To support a statewide network of CILs.

Objective 1: At least every four years, an agreed upon procedures (AUP) review of financial procedures will be arranged by the DSU at each CIL to assist the CILs in developing effective financial procedures as stipulated in the Part B and General Fund contracts.

Objective 2: Each year of the plan, by January 1, the DSU will coordinate and report on a consumer satisfaction survey of CIL consumers. A report on the analysis of the results will be

15 of 50

presented to the SILC at the SILC meeting following the completion of the analysis. The report for each CIL will be presented to the director of the CIL within a week of completion of the report.

<u>Goal four: To support involvement with other organizations that promote services or advocacy efforts related to the disability community.</u>

Travel costs for this goal will be covered in the following manner:

- Travel for SILC members will be covered through the SILC resource plan budget.
- Travel for CIL employees will be covered by the employing CIL.
- Travel for the DSU program manager will be paid from the Other SPIL Activities budget that supports DSU SILS activities.

Also, in some cases, the hosting agency may pay the travel costs or other funds may be available.

Objective 1: Throughout the time period covered by this plan, maintain and support SILC or CIL representation (including reasonable expenses incurred for participation) with the following organizations that are involved with services and advocacy in the disability community, including, but not limited to:

- Montana Council on Developmental Disabilities
- Montana Association of the Blind
- Disability Rights Montana
- Vocational Rehabilitation Council
- Others to be identified

Because many of the above organizations exert control over their membership, the commitment to be involved with the organizations does not apply if the organization chooses not to have a SILC or CIL representative.

Each year of the plan, representatives will provide a report on the activities of the organization during at least one meeting of the full SILC.

Objective 2: Each year of the plan, invite at least one presentation from appropriate groups that promote services or advocacy efforts. At least one presentation over the three year plan will be from an advocacy organization representing the elderly population.

Objective 3: Throughout the time period covered by the plan, maintain involvement on the national level with the following organizations:

- Association of Programs for Rural Independent Living (APRIL)
- National Council on Independent Living (NCIL)
- SILC Congress

Maintaining involvement will include sending a minimum of one representative (of the SILC, a CIL director, or DSU program manager) to national meetings if funding allows and obtaining reports from those representatives at SILC meetings.

Objective 4: In order to increase communication with Montana's elderly population and the agencies that serve them, the following activities will be carried out:

• The Montana CILs will work cooperatively with the Area Agencies on Aging in their regions to establish a "No Wrong Door" approach in service delivery for access to long

term care services for people with disabilities and seniors through Aging and Disability Resource Center partnerships (ADRCs) and other collaborative efforts.

• The Montana CILs will collaborate with the Long Term Care Choices Coalition spearheaded by AARP to advocate improved Medicaid long term services and supports for people with disabilities and seniors.

Goal five: To coordinate independent living task forces to carry out legislative and systems advocacy efforts to address the statewide priority issues established at an October 2009 symposium held in Billings with 150 participants that included the directors and staff of all 4 Montana CILs, board members of some Montana CILs, SILC members, DSU staff and IL consumers. The independent living task forces established, and the priority statewide issues identified at the October 2009 symposium and reaffirmed at a second symposium held in Missoula in July 2010, are:

#### Health Care Task Force

- Equalize Medicaid Medically Needy spend down amount with SSI income limit
- Advocate for additional HCBS waiver slots, maintenance of provider rate increases, and adequate funding for personal assistance services and other long-term services and supports
- Promote the Montana Medicaid for Workers with Disabilities (Medicaid Buy In) program so people with disabilities statewide can maintain Medicaid benefits on the job

#### Youth with Disabilities Task Force

- Explore possibilities to establish self-directed IEPs for high school students with disabilities statewide
- Advocate that VR counselors consistently begin attending IEPs when high school students turn 16 to improve transition outcomes statewide

#### **Funding Issues Task Force**

- Maintain adequate funding for Montana Centers for Independent Living & SILC
- Maintain adequate funding for programs that support independent living needs of consumers

#### Self Determination Task Force

- Establish a mechanism to ensure "Nothing About Us Without Us" in state government
- Advocate better enforcement of building code standards for accessibility statewide
- Advocate that any changes to Montana election laws such as mail balloting provide for accessibility and voting privacy for citizens with disabilities
- Advocate for the re-establishment of a specialized clinic or other means to accurately diagnose and treat people who experience post polio syndrome

#### **Housing Task Force**

- Promote the concept of visitability in new housing construction statewide to increase the stock of housing that is usable for people with disabilities
- Advocate for increased numbers of subsidized housing vouchers available across the state to expand options for affordable and accessible housing

• Promote Fair Housing issues to minimize discrimination and expand housing opportunities for people with disabilities

#### **Transportation Task Force**

- Increase coordination and advocacy resources for Transportation Advisory Committees so they may strengthen linkages and resources in and between Montana's communities
- Advocate for increased funding and expanded transportation resources not only to maintain current level services, but to increase services to address unmet needs

#### Montana American Indian and Disability Initiatives Task Force

- Develop a statewide resource list of resources, programs and services available for American Indians with disabilities, particularly those living on reservations
- Advocate for Social Security liaisons or other means to increase acceptance of Indian health clinic (Indian Health Service or Tribal Health Clinic) doctors' diagnoses of people's disabilities

#### Public Relations/Education Task Force

- Develop talking point documents to be used by all four CILs to consistently promote independent living philosophy, services and systems advocacy/social change efforts statewide
- Develop statewide media contact lists to support ongoing media advocacy efforts

Objective 1: The Legislative/Advocacy Committee will meet at least quarterly throughout the term of the SPIL to work with the task forces to measure progress on legislative and systems change priorities and assist with any changes to existing priorities or the establishment of new priorities.

Objective 2: By October 15, 2010, the task forces made up of consumers, CIL staff, and SILC members will have prioritized the above issues, and will have identified the following:

- The administration aspects of the issues, the possible legislative actions of the issues, and/or the general advocacy components.
- Potential need for additional funding, approximate amount of funding needed, and plan for determining the necessary funding level.
- At least five strong talking points supporting each issue.
- If the issue is too broad what are some bite size pieces that can be addressed.
- Who are some other possible champions that might assist with each issue?
- The overall priorities that can be accomplished given available time and resources.

Objective 3: By January 1, 2011, in collaboration with the Legislative/Advocacy Committee, the task forces will have identified the issues that require grassroots legislative advocacy and the strategies for addressing the priority legislative issues during the 2011 Montana legislative session.

Objective 4: By July 1, 2011, the task forces will have reviewed the impact of the recent Montana legislature on priority legislative issues and readjusted strategies on their goals based on the outcomes of the legislative session.

18 of 50

Objective 5: By September 30, 2011, the Legislative/Advocacy Committee will coordinate with the Montana Independent Living Project to host a statewide symposium in Helena to review progress on task force priorities for legislative and systems change initiatives, re-prioritize issues impacting the disability community, and identify the issues that require grassroots legislative advocacy during the 2013 Montana legislative session.

Objective 6: By January 1, 2012 the Legislative/Advocacy Committee will readjust the task forces to address the new priorities.

Objective 7: By January 1, 2013, in collaboration with the Legislative/Advocacy Committee, the task forces will have identified the issues that require grassroots legislative advocacy and the strategies for addressing the priority legislative issues during the 2013 Montana legislative session.

Objective 8: The task forces will each pursue at least 1 statewide systems advocacy or legislative priority each year during the three year term of the SPIL.

# **1.2B** Describe the steps planned regarding outreach to populations in the State that are unserved or underserved by programs under title VII, including minority groups and urban and rural populations. This section of the SPIL must:

### – Identify the populations to be designated for targeted outreach efforts; The populations identified as underserved in Montana are Native Americans with disabilities, youth with disabilities, and persons with disabilities considering employment.

Montana has seven Native American reservations and is in the process of establishing an eighth. Native Americans account for 6 percent of the state's population. Sixty percent of the state's Native American population resides on reservations. In past plans, the emphasis of the outreach efforts towards Native Americans has been meeting with Section 121 directors who manage programs on reservations. In this plan, there will be an additional initiative (Goal 2 Objective 6) to outreach to the urban Indian centers located in Montana in efforts to better reach the additional forty percent of Native Americans residing in Montana.

Youth (age 18-28) are recognized as an underserved population, and the SILC, CILs, and the DSU believe that it is important to outreach to youth in order to develop future Montana leaders. Also, the perspective of youth is different from the older population and the message and programs of IL need to be modified to relate to youth, particularly in the unique circumstances of transitioning from high school to the adult service system.

Efforts guided by past state plans have assisted in increasing the number of youth with disabilities and Native Americans with disabilities served by Montana's CILs. During the past few years, these populations were served at comparable percentages to those served in the general disability population. In this plan, it is hoped that the comparable service level can be maintained or improved upon and that CILs can be assisted in identifying modifications to

19 of 50

**Commented [M6]:** Mike & CIL directors We need to add brief info about other outreach activities in this section

**Commented [M7]:** Julie Check on updated census data and update as needed service delivery that will make services more appropriate to the different perspectives of the identified underserved populations.

For several years Montana's disability community has indicated a number of issues have impeded persons with disabilities who are considering employment. Key issues noted in this area are obtaining information on social security work incentives, retaining medical coverage after employment, and transportation. The SILC and CILs plan to address these issues in the upcoming three years through direct services and systems advocacy.

## - Identify the geographic areas (i.e., communities) in which the targeted populations reside; and

The language in the 2010-2013 SPIL references underserved <u>populations</u>, not geographical areas. The SPIL language was developed carefully after much discussion and planning with no contemplation for directing new funding by geography based on demographics alone, but rather by identifying populations statewide that were determined to be underserved in comparison with other individuals/groups in the state. This strategy has been consistent for many years and is based on developing the capacity of all four CILs to better meet the needs of all consumers, both those currently receiving services as well as those who are underserved.

The populations identified as underserved in the current SPIL are Native Americans, youth with disabilities, and persons with disabilities seeking employment. The rationale for enhancing services statewide for these populations versus focusing funding in particular geographical areas is as follows:

• Youth with disabilities -- The following table reflects the makeup of Montana's youth age 5-20 and the percentage of youth with disabilities in each CIL's service area. It is noteworthy that there is a less than 2% variance in the numbers of youth with disabilities in each of the four regions of the state.

Table 2: Montana's Population of Youth Age 5-20 and Percentage of Youth with Disabilities in Each CIL Service Area

2000	MILP	NCILS	LIFTT	SUMMIT	Totals
Census					
Youth	53,067	45, 714	51, 426	62, 410	212, 617
without					
disabilities					
Youth with	3338	3343	4132	4298	15, 111
disabilities					
Percentage					
of youth	6.3%	7.3%	8%	6.9%	7.1%
with					average
disabilities					

Young people with disabilities have a right to independent living services regardless of where they live, so our strategy is to increase the capacity of independent living statewide to provide youth services such as self advocacy and empowerment training, transition service, leadership development opportunities, etc.

**Commented [M8]:** Julie—check 704 data Update w/ current data if needed

**Commented [M9]:** Include language re: Medicaid buy-in MMWD program, WIPA also. Check w/ Tom O re: language • Native Americans -- Montana's Native American population resides both on seven reservations as well as in communities across the state. The following table reflects the total number of Native Americans (not those with disabilities, but total number of individuals) for each of the four CIL's regions:

2008 estimates	MILP	NCILS	LIFTT	SUMMIT	Totals
Native	4219	28,364	17,830	11,890	62,303
Americans					
Percentage of	7%	45%	29%	19%	
Native					
Americans/CIL					
service area					

Table 3: Total Number of Native Americans Residing in Each CIL Region

The distribution of Montana's Native American population reflects the location of the seven reservations with respect to each CIL's service area. NCILS has four reservations within its service area, LIFTT has two, Summit has one, while MILP has none. Montana's commitment to serving Native Americans is reflected in the fact that all three of the CILs with a reservation within their service area have a branch office located on a reservation: Summit has a branch office in Ronan on the Flathead reservation; LIFTT serves the Northern Cheyenne Reservation through a branch office located in Ashland; and NCILS has a branch office on the Fort Peck Reservation in Poplar. Additional ARRA Part C funding distributed equally among the CILs reinforces the strategy for expansion of the network of CILs through branch offices, and will further develop the CILs' capacity to serve Native Americans across the state.

In addition to the seven reservations, there are urban Indian centers located in Butte, Helena, Missoula, Great Falls, and Billings that provide services to Native Americans residing in or near these cities. Although MILP does not have a reservation within its service area, it does have two of the urban Indian centers (Butte & Helena) and a total Native American population of 4,219 (2008 estimate). It is generally understood that Native Americans experience disability at a rate of approximately 26%; thus, extrapolating the data would yield 1,097 Native Americans with disabilities within MILP's service area, a significant underserved population.

• People with disabilities seeking employment -- The current CIL strategy for assisting people with disabilities who are seeking employment is based primarily on providing Social Security benefits assistance and planning services through the WIPA program; role modeling and peer support through the peer advocacy program; teaching the Living Well and Working Well with a Disability classes to support consumers' employment goals; and practical experience in part-time paid or volunteer positions within the CILs.

In addition to these direct consumer services, all four CILs have been involved in extensive systems advocacy efforts over the past three years to develop a Medicaid Buy-In program for Montana, including passage of enabling legislation during the 2009 Montana Legislature. While there are no census data available to identify where people with disabilities seeking employment reside, it is reasonable to take a statewide approach to assist this underserved population.

Montana is a very large, geographically diverse state with a total square mileage of 147,043 square miles. Each CIL's service area is unique with its own blend of very rural, sparsely populated areas along with regional population centers. Taken as a whole, the population density of the state is incredibly sparse, with a total state population of 902,195 people for an average population density of 6.2 people per square mile. Compared with the service areas of CILs in most other states, each Montana CIL has a significant challenge serving the vast area in which its consumers are located particularly in light of the rural nature of most of the state with few local community resources available and scarce transportation options. The argument can reasonably be made that the entire state is underserved, especially in light of the fact that <u>145,732</u> Montanans indicated they had some type of mental or physical impairment in the 2000 Census, all of whom are potential consumers of the four CILs (2008 disability statistics are not available). People statewide deserve the opportunity to benefit from independent living, so the strategy reflected in the SPIL is to develop the capacity of all four CILs equally to address the needs in their respective service areas, including the three populations identified as outreach priorities.

Service Areas	Area	Population	People with Disabilities
LIFTT	47,301	217,553	36,085
NCILS	47,898	187,283	31,306
MILP	32,227	231,561	34,788
Summit	19,617	265,798	43,553

Table 4: Area, Population, and Number of People with Disabilities in Each Service Area

- Describe how the needs of individuals with significant disabilities from minority group backgrounds will be addressed.

This is described in several objectives in Goal 2.

#### 1.3 Financial Plan - 34 CFR 364.42(a)(2) and (3); 34 CFR 364.29

Describe in sections 1.3A and 1.3B, below, the financial plan for the use of Federal and non-Federal funds to meet the SPIL objectives.

#### **1.3A Financial Plan Tables**

Complete the financial plan tables covering years 1, 2 and 3 of this SPIL. For each funding source, provide estimated dollar amounts anticipated for the applicable uses. The financial plan table should include only those funding sources and amounts that are intended to support one or more of the objectives identified in section 1.2 of the SPIL. To the extent possible, the tables and narratives must reflect the applicable financial information from centers for independent living.

The following are funding projections and may vary throughout the course of the plan. If funding changes of more than 5% of a particular funding source are anticipated, it may require modification of the SPIL. Changes of less than 5% of a particular funding source are not anticipated as requiring a modification in the SPIL unless goals and objectives are significantly impacted.

#### Year 1

Sources	Approximate Funding Amounts and Uses							
	SILC Resource	IL Services	General CIL	Other SPIL				
	Plan		Operations	Activities				
<b>Title VII Funds</b>								
Chapter 1, Part	\$15,245	\$206,892	0	\$79,340				
B/match is listed								
under state funds								
Chapter 1, Part C	0	0	\$784,879	0				
Chapter 2, OIB	0	0	0	0				
(only those								
provided by the								
OIB grantee to								
further a SPIL								
objective)								
Other Federal								
Funds								
Sec. 101(a)(18)	\$9,415	0	0	0				
of the Act								
(Innovation and								
Expansion)								
Other (WIPA	0	\$100,000	0	0				
Grant)								
Other (SS		\$20,000						
reimbursement)								
Non-Federal								

Funds				
State Funds -	\$4,499	\$22,986	0	\$8,815
match				
State Funds -	0	\$336,593	0	0
general funds for				
IL services				
Other	0	0	0	0

### Year 2

Sources	Approximate Funding Amounts and Uses							
	SILC Resource	IL Services	General CIL	Other SPIL				
	Plan		Operations	Activities				
Title VII Funds								
Chapter 1, Part B	\$8,647	\$206,892	0	\$85,938				
Chapter 1, Part C	0	0	\$784,879	0				
Chapter 2, OIB	0	0	0	0				
(only those								
provided by the								
OIB grantee to								
further a SPIL								
objective)								
Other Federal								
Funds								
Sec. 101(a)(18)	\$9,415	0	0	0				
of the Act								
(Innovation and								
Expansion)								
Other (WIPA	0	\$100,000	0	0				
Grant)								
Other (SS		\$20,000						
reimbursement)								
Non-Federal								
Funds								
State Funds -	\$3,765	\$22,986	0	\$9,549				
match								
State Funds -	0	\$349,899	0	0				
general funds for								
IL services								
Other	0	0	0	0				

24 of 50

#### Year 3

Sources	Approximate Funding Amounts and Uses							
	SILC Resource Plan	IL Services	General CIL Operations	Other SPIL Activities,				
Title VII Funds								
Chapter 1, Part B	\$6,344	\$206,892	0	\$88,241				
Chapter 1, Part C	0	0	\$784,879	0				
Chapter 2, OIB (only those provided by the OIB grantee to further a SPIL objective)	0	0	0	0				
Other Federal								
Funds Sec. 101(a)(18) of the Act (Innovation and Expansion)	\$9,415	0	0	0				
Other (WIPA grant)	0	\$100,000	0	0				
Other (SS reimbursement)		\$20,000						
Non-Federal Funds								
State Funds - match	\$2,443	\$22,986	\$200,000	\$9,815				
State Funds – general funds for IL services	0	349,899	0	00				
Other	0	0	0	0				

#### 1.3B Financial Plan Narratives

**1.3B(1)** Specify how the part B, part C and chapter 2 (Older Blind) funds, if applicable, will further the SPIL objectives. How Part B and Part C dollars will be used.

For an explanation related to the procedures and roles of the SILC and program manager see Section 1.2A.

The following is a description of the funds that support each of the objectives. The CILs' goals incorporated into this SPIL are supported through the contracts for services from Part B, including match, listed under IL Services; the contracts for services from the state general fund listed under IL services; and Part C funds listed under General CIL Operations. The goals supported by Part B and General Fund dollars are those where it has been noted that a **Commented [M10]:** Julie describe amounts of ARRA C & B funding in each year

SILS goal has incorporated a CIL goal at least partially into a SILS goal. Part C funds are the primary funding source for supporting the operation of CILs and CILs goals. <u>Goal one: To provide independent living (IL) services to as many people as possible in</u> <u>Montana.</u> Objective 1: During each year of the plan, at least 233 new consumers will be found eligible and have services initiated by Montana's network of CILs. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds and state general funds listed under IL Services.

Objective 2: During each year of the plan, at least 50 activities that involve local advocacy to improve the lives of persons with disabilities in areas such as housing, transportation, accessibility, and youth transition will be carried out by Montana's network of CILs with SILC members being involved in at least 15 of the advocacy activities. Examples include: advocating for increasing the accessible units in local housing programs; recruiting and orienting persons with disabilities to serve on local transportation advisory committees; and developing, coordinating, and promoting a local care giver conference.

This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds and state general funds listed under IL Services.

Objective 3: Each year of the plan, in order to monitor the provision of services, the DSU program manager will conduct a site visit to review case records, conduct interviews, and other activities necessary to assess the service delivery system of two CILs. As part of the evaluation of this goal a SILC representative will accompany the program manager on the site visit. Within sixty days following the site visit, a written report will be developed and delivered to the CIL director, with a copy to be delivered to the CIL board. A report will be provided to the full SILC at the SILC meeting following the site visit.

This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds listed under Other SPIL Activities. These funds provide the salary of the program manager and the position's travel. The Part B (including match) funds listed under SILC Resource Plan support the transportation and other expenses that support the SILC representative.

Objective 4: Each year of the plan, the DSU will provide the administrative support necessary to compile the contracts to provide services through the CILs. As part of the evaluation of this goal, committee of the SILC will review and provide input on the contracts. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds listed under Other SPIL Activities. These funds provide the salary of the program manager and other DSU personnel involved with the contract responsibilities.

Objective 5: During each year of the plan, the DSU program manager will consult with CIL directors and SILC members to gather information to draft a report for the Governor that will also be distributed to state legislators. The draft will be reviewed by the SILC chair and revised as necessary prior to final distribution.

This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds listed under Other SPIL Activities. These funds provide the salary of the program manager.

Commented [M11]: Use languagefrom goal 5

<u>Goal two:</u> To provide outreach to underserved populations in Montana to gain a better understanding of how to provide appropriate services to populations designated as underserved.

Objective 1: Each year of the plan, each of the CILs under contract with the DSU will conduct at least one systems change activity (see explanation of systems change and examples in goal 1 objective 2) that supports an independent living issue of importance to consumers from one of the designated underserved populations. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds and state general funds listed under IL Services.

Objective 2: Each year of the plan, the SILC will invite representatives from one of the identified underserved populations to present at a SILC meeting to provide guidance on methods of adapting the four core services to better serve that population. This objective is supported by the Part B (including match) funds listed under Other SPIL Activities. These funds provide the salary of the program manager who makes meeting arrangements. Also, the meeting funds provided under Title I listed in the SILC Resource Plan supports the costs of meetings, including travel costs for presenters if necessary.

Objective 3: Each year of the plan, the CILs will continue to collaborate with the urban Indian centers and other tribal agencies located in their service area regarding outreach to appropriate consumers served by the urban Indian centers. The CIL directors will report on the outcomes of these collaborative efforts at a SILC meeting each year. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds and state general funds listed under IL Services.

Objective 4: Before the end of the first year of this plan, the CIL directors will report to the SILC their plans for outreach to Native Americans who live off the reservations and outside of the communities where the urban Indian centers are located, and the results of outreach efforts. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds and state general funds listed under IL Services.

Objective 5: Each year of the plan, the CILs will continue to collaborate with the Section 121 projects and other tribal programs on the reservations located in their service areas regarding outreach to appropriate consumers served by the 121 projects and other tribal programs. The CIL directors will report on the outcomes of these collaborative efforts at a SILC meeting each year. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds and state general funds listed under IL Services.

Objective 6: Each year of the plan, at a SILC meeting, the CIL directors will present the initiatives they have carried out that year to outreach to the identified underserved populations groups and provide data and other evidence of the outcomes of those efforts. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds and state general funds listed under IL Services.

Objective 7: Throughout the plan, the SILC will maintain a youth member (age 18-28) on the SILC. If the youth member ages out and continues on the SILC, another member meeting the age criteria will be recruited when a vacancy occurs. This objective is primarily supported by funds to support SILC meetings provided under Title I listed in the SILC Resource Plan support

 $27 \ \mathrm{of} \ 50$ 

the costs of meetings. The Part B funds (including match) listed under the SILC Resource Plan also support activities of the youth member to be involved with committees and obtain training.

Objective 8: Throughout the plan, the SILC will have an active Underserved Committee that meets at least three times per year and provides guidance to the SILC on underserved populations, including evaluation of the efforts to outreach to the underserved populations. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B funds (including match) listed under the SILC Resource Plan. These funds support the activities of committees.

Objective 8: Throughout the plan, there will be a director or representative of 121 projects on the SILC. This objective is primarily supported by the Part B funds (including match) listed under the SILC Resource Plan. These funds support the activities of committees.

Objective 9: In order to meet the cross-disability responsibility of IL, the SILC will have one disability specific presentation at a SILC meeting each year of this plan to keep current with needs and initiatives of specific disabilities. This objective is primarily supported by Part B funds (including match) listed under Other SPIL Activities that provide the salary of the program manager who makes meeting arrangements. Also, the meeting funds provided under Title I listed in the SILC Resource Plan supports the costs of meetings, including travel costs for presenters if necessary.

#### Goal three: To support a statewide network of CILs.

Objective 1: At least every four years, an AUP review of financial procedures will be arranged by the DSU at each Center to assist the CILs in developing effective financial procedures. This objective is supported by Part B funds (including match) listed in the Other SPIL Activities. The funds support the costs of the program manager and other DSU personnel involved in the activities related to the objective as well as the indirect costs which support the services of the state auditors that perform the AUP.

Objective 2: Each year of the plan, by January 1, the DSU will coordinate and report on a consumer satisfaction survey of CIL consumers. A report on the analysis of the results will be presented to the SILC at the SILC meeting following the completion of the analysis. The report for each CIL will be presented to the director of the CIL within a week of completion of the report.

This objective is primarily supported by the Part B (including match) funds listed under Other SPIL Activities. These funds provide the salary of the program manager.

## <u>Goal four: To support involvement with other organizations that promote services or advocacy efforts related to the disability community.</u>

Objective 1: Throughout the time period covered by this plan, maintain and support SILC or CIL representation (including reasonable expenses incurred for participation) with the following organizations that are involved with services and advocacy in the disability community:

- Montana Council on Developmental Disabilities
- Montana Association of the Blind
- Vocational Rehabilitation Council

Commented [M12]: Update list

- Disability Rights Montana
- Others to be identified

Because many of the above organizations exert control over their membership, the commitment to be involved with the organizations does not apply if the organization chooses not to have a SILC or CIL representative.

Each year of the plan, representatives will provide a report on the activities of the organization during at least one meeting of the full SILC.

This objective is primarily supported by Part B funds (including match) listed in the SILC Resource Plan (for SILC member participation), in the Other SPIL Activities (for program manager participation) or Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation (to support CIL staff).

Objective 2: Each year of the plan, invite at least one presentation from appropriate groups that promote services or advocacy efforts. At least one presentation over the three year plan will be from an advocacy organization representing the elderly population.

This objective is primarily supported by the Part B funds (including match) listed under the SILC Resource Plan. These funds support the activities of committees.

Objective 3: Throughout the time period covered by the plan, maintain involvement on the national level with the following organizations:

- Association of Programs for Rural Independent Living (APRIL)
- National Council on Independent Living (NCIL)
- SILC Congress

Maintaining involvement will include sending a minimum of one representative (of the SILC, a CIL director, or DSU program manager) to national meetings, if funding allows, and obtaining reports from those representatives at SILC meetings.

This objective is primarily supported by Part B funds (including match) listed in the SILC Resource Plan (for SILC member participation), in the Other SPIL Activities (for program manager participation) or Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation (to support CIL staff).

Objective 4: In order to increase communication with Montana's elderly population and the agencies that serve them, the following activities will be carried out:

- The Montana CILs will work cooperatively with the Area Agencies on Aging in their regions to establish a "No Wrong Door" approach in service delivery for access to long term care services for people with disabilities and seniors through Aging and Disability Resource Center partnerships (ADRCs) and other collaborative efforts.
- The Montana CILs will collaborate with the Long Term Care Choices Coalition spearheaded by AARP to advocate improved Medicaid long term services and supports for people with disabilities and seniors.

This objective is primarily supported by Part B funds, Part C funds, and state general funds.

Goal five: To coordinate independent living task forces to carry out legislative and systems advocacy efforts to address the statewide priority issues established at an October 2009 symposium held in Billings with 150 participants that included the directors and staff of all 4 Montana CILs, board members of some Montana CILs, SILC members, DSU staff and IL consumers. The independent living task forces established, and the priority statewide issues

Commented [M13]: Update w/ ADRC language

## identified at the October 2009 symposium and reaffirmed at a second symposium held in Missoula in July 2010, are:

#### Health Care Task Force

- Equalize Medicaid Medically Needy spend down amount with SSI income limit
- Advocate for additional HCBS waiver slots, maintenance of provider rate increases, and adequate funding for personal assistance services and other long-term services and supports
- Promote the Montana Medicaid for Workers with Disabilities (Medicaid Buy In) program so people with disabilities statewide can maintain Medicaid benefits on the job

#### Youth with Disabilities Task Force

- Explore possibilities to establish self-directed IEPs for high school students with disabilities statewide
- Advocate that VR counselors consistently begin attending IEPs when high school students turn 16 to improve transition outcomes statewide

#### Funding Issues Task Force

- Maintain adequate funding for Montana Centers for Independent Living & SILC
- Maintain adequate funding for programs that support independent living needs of consumers

#### Self Determination Task Force

- Establish a mechanism to ensure "Nothing About Us Without Us" in state government
- Advocate better enforcement of building code standards for accessibility statewide
- Advocate that any changes to Montana election laws such as mail balloting provide for accessibility and voting privacy for citizens with disabilities
- Advocate for the re-establishment of a specialized clinic or other means to accurately diagnose and treat people who experience post polio syndrome

#### Housing Task Force

- Promote the concept of visitability in new housing construction statewide to increase the stock of housing that is usable for people with disabilities
- Advocate for increased numbers of subsidized housing vouchers available across the state to expand options for affordable and accessible housing
- Promote Fair Housing issues to minimize discrimination and expand housing opportunities for people with disabilities

#### **Transportation Task Force**

- Increase coordination and advocacy resources for Transportation Advisory Committees so they may strengthen linkages and resources in and between Montana's communities
- Advocate for increased funding and expanded transportation resources not only to maintain current level services, but to increase services to address unmet needs

#### Montana American Indian and Disability Initiatives Task Force

• Develop a statewide resource list of resources, programs and services available for

American Indians with disabilities, particularly those living on reservations

• Advocate for Social Security liaisons or other means to increase acceptance of Indian health clinic (Indian Health Service or Tribal Health Clinic) doctors' diagnoses of people's disabilities

#### Public Relations/Education Task Force

- Develop talking point documents to be used by all four CILs to consistently promote independent living philosophy, services and systems advocacy/social change efforts statewide
- Develop statewide media contact lists to support ongoing media advocacy efforts

Objective 1: The Legislative/Advocacy Committee will meet at least quarterly throughout the term of the SPIL to work with the task forces to measure progress on legislative and systems change priorities and assist with any changes to existing priorities or the establishment of new priorities. Costs related to the Legislative/Advocacy Committee and task force activities are covered by the CILs, primarily through Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation. Time for the program manager time in carrying out any assigned tasks will be covered under the SILC other resources section of the budget.

Objective 2: By October 15, 2010, the task forces made up of consumers, CIL staff, and SILC members will have prioritized the above issues, and will have identified the following:

- The administration aspects of the issues, the possible legislative actions of the issues, and/or the general advocacy components.
- Potential need for additional funding, approximate amount of funding needed, and plan for determining the necessary funding level.
- At least five strong talking points supporting each issue.
- If the issue is too broad what are some bite size pieces that can be addressed.
- Who are some other possible champions that might assist with each issue?
- The overall priorities that can be accomplished given available time and resources.

Costs related to task force activities are covered by the CILs, primarily through Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation. Time for the program manager in carrying out any assigned tasks will be covered under the SILC other resources section of the budget.

Objective 3: By January 1, 2011, in collaboration with the Legislative/Advocacy Committee, the task forces will have identified the issues that require grassroots legislative advocacy and the strategies for addressing the priority legislative issues during the 2011 Montana legislative session. Costs related to the Legislative/Advocacy Committee and task force activities are covered by the CILs, primarily through Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation. Time for the program manager in carrying out any assigned tasks will be covered under the SILC other resources section of the budget.

Objective 4: By July 1, 2011, the task forces will have reviewed the impact of the recent Montana legislature on priority legislative issues and readjusted strategies on their goals based on the outcomes of the legislative session. Costs related to the Legislative/Advocacy Committee and task force activities are covered by the CILs, primarily through Part C funds listed under

31 of 50

General CIL Operation. Time for the program manager in carrying out any assigned tasks will be covered under the SILC other resources section of the budget.

Objective 5: By September 30, 2011, the Legislative/Advocacy Committee will coordinate with the Montana Independent Living Project to host a statewide symposium in Helena to review progress on task force priorities for legislative and systems change initiatives, re-prioritize issues impacting the disability community, and identify the issues that require grassroots legislative advocacy during the 2013 Montana legislative session. Costs related to the Legislative/Advocacy Committee and task force activities are covered by the CILs, primarily through Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation. Time for the program manager in carrying out any assigned tasks will be covered under the SILC other resources section of the budget. Costs for the statewide symposium will be covered by Part B ARRA funds.

Objective 6: By January 1, 2012 the Legislative/Advocacy Committee will readjust the task forces to address the new priorities. Costs related to the Legislative/Advocacy Committee and task force activities are covered by the CILs, primarily through Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation. Time for the program manager in carrying out any assigned tasks will be covered under the SILC other resources section of the budget.

Objective 7: By January 1, 2013, in collaboration with the Legislative/Advocacy Committee, the task forces will have identified the issues that require grassroots legislative advocacy and the strategies for addressing the priority legislative issues during the 2013 Montana legislative session. Costs related to the Legislative/Advocacy Committee and task force activities are covered by the CILs, primarily through Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation. Time for the program manager in carrying out any assigned tasks will be covered under the SILC other resources section of the budget.

Objective 8: The task forces will each pursue at least one statewide systems advocacy or legislative priority each year during the three year term of the SPIL. Costs related to the Legislative/Advocacy Committee and task force activities are covered by the CILs, primarily through Part C funds listed under General CIL Operation. Time for the program manager in carrying out any assigned tasks will be covered under the SILC other resources section of the budget.

**1.3B(2)** Describe efforts to coordinate Federal and State funding for centers and IL services, including the amounts, sources and purposes of the funding to be coordinated. During allocation of state funding, issues such as imbalance of federal funding and underserved populations in the service areas are taken into consideration in order try to equalize accessibility to IL services throughout Montana. This method has led to near equal funding levels from the core funding sources for CILs in Montana.

The following estimated projections are made for the Centers for Part B, Part C and State IL General Funds, actual distribution may vary as described previously in this plan (Section 1.3 A).

Commented [M14]: update

Year/Cen		2008			2009			2010	
	Part B	St Gen Funds	Part C	Part B	St Gen Funds	Part C	Part B	St Gen Funds	Part C
LIFTT	\$91,951	\$153,150	\$90,180	\$91,951	\$153,150	\$90,180	\$91,951	\$153,150	\$90,180
MILP	\$22,988	\$30,293	\$260,462	\$22,988	\$43,599	\$260,462	\$22,988	\$43,599	\$260,462
NCILS	\$91,951	\$153,150	\$101,190	\$91,951	\$153,150	\$101,190	\$91,951	\$153,150	\$101,190
Summit	\$22,988	\$0	\$333,047	\$22,988	0	\$333,047	\$22,988	\$0	\$333,047

Part C funds are directly granted by RSA to all four Montana IL Centers. The state unit does not have the required funds to participate in the matching mechanism detailed in the statute; therefore, Part C grants are made directly to the CILs. Summit and MILP receive the majority of the available Part C funds available to Montana.

# **1.3B(3)** Describe any in-kind resources including plant, equipment or services to be provided in support of the SILC resource plan, IL services, general CIL operations and/or other SPIL objectives.

For an explanation related to the procedures and roles of the SILC and program manager see Section 1.2A.

Office space, office supplies, access to major office equipment (copier, fax, scanner, laptop computer, projector, etc), and access to DSU training funds are made available as in-kind contributions to support the program manager when carrying out activities to support the SILC and SPIL activities

#### **1.3B(4)** Provide any additional information about the financial plan, as appropriate.

Should additional funding for IL services become available during the course of the plan, the first priority would be maintaining equal funding between the CILs in the three core funding areas. The second priority would be to maintain adequate funding for the SILC resource plan. The third priority would be to support a biennial independent living symposium for systems advocacy and planning. The fourth priority would be distributing all remaining funding equally among the four CILs. If funds received have earmarked purposes, the funds will be used for the designated purposes and not distributed per the preceding priorities.

#### 1.4 <u>Compatibility with Chapter 1 of Title VII and the CIL Work Plans – 34 CFR 364.42(c)</u> and (e)

1.4A Describe how the SPIL objectives are consistent with and further the purpose of chapter 1 of title VII of the Act as stated in section 701 of the Act and 34 CFR 364.2.

The purpose of Chapter 1 of Title VII is to promote a philosophy of independent living, including a philosophy of consumer control, peer support, self-help, self-determination, equal access, and individual and system advocacy in order to maximize the leadership, empowerment, independence, and productivity of individuals with disabilities, and the integration and full inclusion of individuals with disabilities into the mainstream of American society. Goal one of this plan supports maximizing the independent living services in Montana. During the service delivery system, consumers are exposed to the philosophies of independent living and a major part of the service delivery is learning that the consumer needs to be self empowered to get the support needed to achieve their goals. Also, the systems advocacy activities carried out in Goal

**Commented [M15]:** revisit and clarify. Add general language re: reduced funding

one focus on implementing integration and inclusion of individuals with disabilities in mainstream of society. Goals five and six focus on strategizing to overcome obstacles to the integration and inclusion of individuals with disabilities on the state and local level. The issues were all identified by groups that were almost wholly persons with disability, which incorporates the philosophy of self determination. Leadership of the task forces that are implementing strategies to address the issues are primarily persons with disabilities. The end outcome of Goals five and six is that through addressing issues persons with disabilities will be empowered and will reduce barriers to persons with disabilities in Montana and consequently increase the independence and productivity of Montanans with disabilities.

# 1.4B Describe how, in developing the SPIL objectives, the DSU and the SILC considered and incorporated, where appropriate, the priorities and objectives established by centers for independent living under section 725(c)(4) of the Act.

The SILC incorporated a number of the CIL goals into SILS goals and those instances are noted in the goal section. The primary conduit for this incorporation was having a CIL director that was a member of the SPIL writing team who assisted with writing SILS goals. This representative got input from the other directors and represented the views of the other directors as well as his own on the committee. Also, at many meetings other CIL directors attended the meeting and spoke out on goals and other issues. Also, in two of the primary overarching goals (goals 5 and 6), CIL directors and many CIL staff attended the October 2009 symposium that identified the areas that would be priorities for work on a statewide and a local basis. This is reflected in the fact that priorities that are mentioned in CIL goals such as housing, transportation and youth transition became priority areas in SILS goals 5 and 6.

#### 1.5 <u>Cooperation, Coordination, and Working Relationships Among Various Entities – 34</u> <u>CFR 364.26</u>

Describe the steps that will be taken to maximize the cooperation, coordination and working relationships among the SILS program, the SILC, and centers; the DSU, other State agencies represented on the SILC and other councils that address the needs of specific disability populations and issues; and other public and private entities determined to be appropriate by the SILC.

- The description must identify the entities with which the DSU and the SILC will cooperate and coordinate.
  - The SILC members are encouraged to visit CILs.
  - Information on CILs in general and from each CIL is provided as part of the orientation process for new SILC members and is available to all SILC members.
  - While one CIL director is a member of the SILC, all CIL directors are invited to all general SILC meetings.
  - All CIL directors are involved in at least one committee of the SILC.
  - The DSU IL program manager visits each CIL at least once a year.
  - The DSU IL program manager is willing to attend CIL director meetings when invited.
  - The CILs, SILC, and DSU program manager are all involved with planning for IL symposiums, legislative day, and other statewide activities.

- o The DSU, with SILC input, contracts with CILs to provide IL services.
- The DSU ex-officio member on the SILC is Peggy Williams. Peggy also staffs the Montana Vocational Rehabilitation (MVR) Council and this assists with coordination of the SILC with that council and MVR. The SILC maintains a representative on the MVR Council which allows for a direct conduit of VR issues into the SILC. The SILC maintains an ex-officio member of a non DSU state agency which allows for direct input into the SILC from another state agency perspective.

Also, as described in Goal 4, SILC members, CIL directors, and DSU staff are encouraged to participate in councils and organizations that are involved with disability issues. At each SILC meeting, those present are allowed time to discuss activities of other groups they are involved with. If the reports present possibilities for collaboration, often plans on how to pursue collaboration are developed and carried out.

Specific entities the DSU and the SILC cooperate and coordinate with are:

- Montana Council on Developmental Disabilities
- Montana Association of the Blind
- Disability Rights Montana
- Vocational Rehabilitation Council
- Others to be identified

#### 1.6 Coordination of Services – 34 CFR 364.27

Describe how IL services funded under chapter 1 of title VII of the Act will be coordinated with and complement other services to avoid unnecessary duplication with other Federal, State, and local programs, including the OIB program authorized by chapter 2 of title VII of the Act, that provide IL- or VR-related services.

The CIL directors, SILC members, and DSU staff are actively involved with a number of disability organizations and coalitions of organizations, and through these contacts the IL network becomes aware of services provided through other agencies. Reports at the SILC meetings become a forum for sharing issues related to duplication of services and developing opportunities to develop approaches that complement services within the network through cooperation and collaboration. Specific connections with other networks that create communication channels are:

- A representative of the SILC sits on the state VR Council and one of the members of that Council is a staff of Special Education section of the Office of Public Instruction and there is significant opportunity to obtain information on Special Education through the interaction on this council.
- The program manager's office is housed in the Department of Public Health and Human Services and is on the primary email distribution lists for sharing information within the Department. When information of significance to services provided by the CILs comes through the system, the program manager forwards the information to the CILs and the SILC. The program manager uses their position within the Department as a liaison for the CILs upon request by the CILs or SILC.

- One of the CILs has a staff person who serves on the board of directors of Disability Rights Montana.
- CIL staff members sit on local advisory councils of local mental health service authority organizations, which assist in the management of regional public mental health care.
- One CIL is the recipient of a WIPA contract through the Social Security Administration and gets regular updates on programs authorized under titles XVIII through XX of the Social Security Act. That CIL shares significant issues that come through this communication with other CILs and the SILC.
- A SILC member works as a volunteer member of the Vision Impairment Service Team at a veteran's medical service center and this assists in staying current with VA policies. Also, a major portion of his role is referring veterans to other local services and by keeping current on the local programs; it assists with coordination with the VA services.
- Coordination with the OIB is described in the following section.

#### 1.7<u>Independent Living Services for Individuals who are Older Blind – 34 CFR 364.28</u> Describe how the DSU seeks to incorporate into, and describe in, the State plan any new methods or approaches for the provision of IL services to older individuals who are blind that are developed under the Older Individuals who are Blind program and that the DSU determines to be effective.

The DSU considers input from the SILC important on issues involving the state plan. Therefore, the SILC will have a presentation by the Program Administrator of the Older Individuals who are Blind Program for consideration of incorporating into, and describing in, the State plan any new methods or approaches for the provision of IL services to older individuals who are blind. The presentation will occur during the second year of the new plan in order to allow the opportunity to incorporate ideas into the 2011-2013 plan.

#### Section 2: Scope, Extent, and Arrangements of Services

2.1 <u>Scope and Extent – 34 CFR 364.42(b)(2)(3); 34 CFR 364.43(b); 34 CFR 364.59(b)</u> 2.1A Check the appropriate boxes in the SPIL Instrument table indicating the types of IL services to be provided to meet the objectives identified in section 1.2 of this SPIL, and whether the services will be provided by the CILs or by the DSU (directly and/or through contract or grant).

Table 2.1A: Independent living services	Provided by the DSU (directly)	Provided by the DSU (through contract and/or grant)	Provided by the CILs (Not through DSU contracts/ grants)
Core Independent Living Services, as follows:			
- Information and referral		Х	Х
- IL skills training		Х	Х
- Peer counseling		Х	Х
<ul> <li>Individual and systems advocacy</li> </ul>		Х	Х
Counseling services, including psychological, psychotherapeutic, and related services		Х	Х

Commented [M16]: Ch
Table 2.1A: Independent living services	Provided by the DSU (directly)	Provided by the DSU (through contract and/or grant)	Provided by the CILs (Not through DSU contracts/ grants)
Services related to securing housing or shelter,		Х	Х
including services related to community group			
living, and supportive of the purposes of this Act and of the titles of this Act, and adaptive housing			
services (including appropriate accommodations to			
and modifications of any space used to serve, or			
occupied by, individuals with significant			
disabilities)			
Rehabilitation technology		Х	Х
Mobility training		Х	Х
Services and training for individuals with		Х	Х
cognitive and sensory disabilities, including life			
skills training, and interpreter and reader services			
Personal assistance services, including attendant		Х	Х
care and the training of personnel providing such			
services		37	37
Surveys, directories and other activities to identify		Х	Х
appropriate housing, recreation, accessible			
transportation and other support services Consumer information programs on rehabilitation		X	X
and IL services available under this Act, especially		А	Λ
for minorities and other individuals with			
disabilities who have traditionally been unserved			
or underserved by programs under this Act			
Education and training necessary for living in the		Х	Х
community and participating in community			
activities			
Supported living		Х	Х
Transportation, including referral and assistance		Х	Х
for such transportation			
Physical rehabilitation		X	X
Therapeutic treatment		X	X
Provision of needed prostheses and other		Х	Х
appliances and devices Individual and group social and recreational		X	X
services		Λ	Λ
Training to develop skills specifically designed for		x	X
youths who are individuals with significant			
disabilities to promote self-awareness and esteem,			
develop advocacy and self-empowerment skills,			
and explore career options			

Table 2.1A: Independent living services	Provided by the DSU (directly)	Provided by the DSU (through contract and/or grant)	Provided by the CILs (Not through DSU contracts/ grants)
Services for children with significant disabilities		X	X
Services under other Federal, State, or local programs designed to provide resources, training, counseling, or other assistance of substantial benefit in enhancing the independence, productivity, and quality of life of individuals with significant disabilities		Х	X
Appropriate preventive services to decrease the need of individuals with significant disabilities for similar services in the future		Х	Х
Community awareness programs to enhance the understanding and integration into society of individuals with disabilities		Х	Х
Other necessary services not inconsistent with the Act		Х	Х

### **2.1B** Describe any service provision priorities, including types of services or populations, established for meeting the SPIL objectives identified in section 1.2.

Because funding for IL services in Montana is inadequate to provide the same level of quality services across the full scope of IL services listed above, Montana prioritizes the support and strengthening of the four core IL services. The development of strong personal advocacy skills and a strong advocacy network for disability issues is particularly emphasized. Other services are available and provided, but the core services are prioritized. In addition, there is an emphasis in outreaching to the underserved populations described in 1.2 B.

2.1C If the State allows service providers to charge consumers for the cost of services or to consider the ability of individual consumers to pay for the cost of IL services, specify the types of IL services for which costs may be charged and for which a financial need test may be applied, and describe how the State will ensure that:

- Any consideration of financial need is applied uniformly so that all individuals who are eligible for IL services are treated equally; and
- Written policies and consumer documentation required by 34 CFR 364.59(d) will be kept by the service provider.

Montana allows service providers to charge consumers for the cost of services and to consider the ability of individual consumers to pay for the cost of IL services. However, it does not require them to do so and at this time no CILS require a financial need test for the provision of services. Should a CIL indicate that they will be charging consumers for services, they will be required to provide attachments with the following documentation:

Commented [M17]: Check w/ CIL directors

- Procedures in place to ensure that any consideration of financial need is applied uniformly so that all individuals who are eligible for IL services are treated equally; and

- Written policies and consumer documentation required by 34 CFR 364.59(d) will be kept by the service provider.

During site reviews the service providers that have indicated that they plan to charge consumers will have records reviewed related to compliance with the above requirements.

#### 2.2 Arrangements for State-Provided Services - 34 CFR 364.43(d) and (e)

2.2A If the DSU will provide any of the IL services identified in section 2.1A through grants or contractual arrangements with third parties, describe such arrangements.

Montana provides services to individuals with disabilities through contracts for Part B funds and targeted general funds. Contracts are developed to ensure that federal requirements related to the operation of CILs and providing IL services to consumers are agreed to by the CILs. The contracts are also reviewed by SILC members prior to completion of the contracts. In order to monitor for compliance with the terms of the contract, the DSU program manager and a SILC representative conduct periodic site reviews and auditors from the Department of Public Health and Human Services conduct periodic reviews that involve reviewing the financial procedures of the CILs.

# 2.2B If the State contracts with or awards a grant to a center for the general operation of the center, describe how the State will ensure that the determination of an individual's eligibility for services from that center shall be delegated to the center.

The CILs determine consumer eligibility. Language that reflects federal requirements for eligibility are included in the contracts and the determination that the CILs are determining eligibility based on the guidelines is reviewed in site visits described in SILS goal one objective three.

#### Section 3: Design for the Statewide Network of Centers

#### 3.1 Existing Network - 34 CFR 364.25

Provide an overview of the existing network of centers, including non-Part C-funded centers that comply with the standards and assurances in section 725 (b) and (c) of the Act, and the geographic areas and populations currently served by the centers.

As of FY 2010 the existing network of CILs consists of four CILs and twelve branch offices with another planned to be opened at the end of the fiscal year. The CILs provide IL services to the entire State of Montana capitalizing on branch offices to provide core IL services to individuals as well as system change advocacy, education, and awareness services. The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act monies allowed for two branch offices to be opened during FY10 and another one will be opened at the end of the year. All of the CILs receive a mix of Part B, state General Fund (through contract), and Part C funds. Estimated distributions of state funds for Part B and General Funds are included in section 1.3B.

Summit's services are available to residents of Missoula, Ravalli, Mineral, Lake, Sanders, Flathead and Lincoln Counties in western Montana. Missoula and Kalispell are the primary urban areas in this region, while most of the remaining service area is characterized by small towns and sparsely populated rural areas. Flathead, Missoula and Ravalli Counties are among the fastest growing areas in the state, and overall Summit's seven-county service area contains

39 of 50

nearly 1/3 of the state's population. Summit is headquartered in Missoula with branch offices in Hamilton, Ronan and Kalispell. This service area includes the Flathead Indian Reservation, which is the tribal home of the Salish and Kootenai Tribes, located in Lake and Sanders Counties, which is served by the Ronan office. The Kalispell office covers Flathead and Lincoln Counties, the Hamilton office is responsible for services in Ravalli County, and the main office in Missoula primarily serves Missoula and Mineral Counties. Staff members from the Missoula office also travel to outlying counties to serve consumers in the Self Directed Personal Assistance Services program, as well as to assist with delivery of other independent living services as appropriate.

The service area for LIFTT consists of the following eighteen counties in the southeastern part of Montana: Big Horn, Carbon, Carter, Custer, Dawson, Fallon, Garfield, Golden Valley, McCone, Musselshell, Powder River, Prairie, Richland, Rosebud, Stillwater, Treasure, Wibaux and Yellowstone. Part C monies support program costs in LIFTT's Glendive (Dawson County), Ashland (Big Horn/Rosebud Counties), Miles City (Custer County), and Hardin (Big Horn County) branch offices and the main office in Billings is housed in Yellowstone County. The LIFTT service area includes two American Indian Reservations – the Northern Cheyenne and Crow.

NCILS goal is to conduct activities to increase the number of people served who are members of populations that are currently underserved which includes any consumer living within the seventeen county service area. NCILS provides IL services within the following seventeen Montana counties of Blaine, Cascade, Chouteau, Daniels, Fergus, Glacier, Hill, Judith Basin, Liberty, Petroleum, Phillips, Pondera, Roosevelt, Sheridan, Teton, Toole, and Valley, and on four Indian Reservations which include the Blackfeet Indian Reservation within the counties of Glacier/Pondera, Fort Belknap Indian Reservation within the counties of Blaine/Phillips, Fort Peck Indian Reservation within the counties of Hill/Chouteau.

NCILS maintains two branch offices with one of the offices in the town of Glasgow within Valley County, and the second office in the town of Poplar located on the Fort Peck Indian Reservation within the counties of Roosevelt/Daniels/Valley.

Staff members from the NCILS offices provide outreach to the underserved population which includes consumers living within the seventeen county service area, youth and continue to provide support and staff for branch offices in Valley and Roosevelt Counties that include the MYLF office.

MILP has three offices – Helena, Butte, and Bozeman – providing services to consumers living in fourteen counties throughout Montana. Our main office in Helena provides services in Broadwater, Jefferson and Lewis & Clark Counties; our Butte branch office provides services in Beaverhead, Deer Lodge, Granite, Jefferson, Madison, Silver Bow and Powell Counties; and our Bozeman branch office provides services in Gallatin, Meagher, Park, Sweet Grass, Madison and Wheatland Counties. MILP is in the process of initiating two additional branch offices via Part C ARRA funds; one in Dillon and one in Harlowton designed to "grow" services in local communities. Hopefully the "indigenous" based offices will minimize travel and outreach to these remote portions of MILP's service area.

MILP has developed relationships with the urban Indian centers located in Helena and Butte,

which demographically have 4,200 citizens who could access those centers. Given the high incidence of disability among American Indians, collaborative outreach between the urban Indian and independent living centers could improve services to the American Indian population. Of the 147,000 square miles in Montana, MILP's service area covers approximately 32,000 square miles (22%). MILP's service area (14 counties) serves a population of 260,250 (27%).

Below is a map of Montana indicating the areas served by the four CILs.



Figure One: CIL REGIONS

#### 3.2 Expansion of Network - 34 CFR 364.25

Describe the design for the further expansion of the network, including identification of the unserved and underserved areas in the State and the order of priority for serving these areas as additional funding becomes available (beyond the required cost-of-living increase).

The plan for further expansion of the network of CILs is to build on the existing branch office strategy versus development of a new CIL since all of the state's 56 counties are included in the service area of the four existing centers. Each of Montana's four CILs will determine the best course of action to address unmet needs within its service area, whether by establishing a new branch office or by developing the capacity of existing offices. This SPIL does not designate specific geographic regions of the state as underserved but rather focuses on underserved populations, to include youth with disabilities, people with disabilities seeking employment, and American Indians. Any new funding available for expansion of the network of CILs will be split equally among the four Centers for Independent Living.

#### 3.3 Section 723 States Only - 34 CFR 364.39

Montana is not a 723 state.

3.3A If the State follows an order of priorities for allocating funds among centers within a State that is different from what is outlined in 34 CFR 366.22, describe the alternate order of priority that the DSU director and the SILC chair have agreed upon. Indicate N/A if not applicable.

N/A

**3.3B** Describe how the State policies, practices and procedures governing the awarding of grants to centers and the oversight of these centers are consistent with 34 CFR 366.37 and 366.38.

#### Section 4: Designated State Unit (DSU)

4.1 Administrative Support Services – 34 CFR 364.4; 34 CFR 364.22(b)
4.1A Describe the administrative support services to be provided by the DSU for the SILS (Part B) program and, if the State is a Section 723 State, for the CIL (Part C) program. For an explanation related to the procedures and roles of the SILC and program manager see Section 1.2A.

Administrative staff support for the SILC is provided by designated state unit with Title VII Part B funds (including match). The staff support position is responsible for providing staffing activities to the SILC, which include coordination and hosting meetings; support of SILC committees; assisting with management and execution of the SPIL; document development; and to serve as liaison to the SILC and DSU and CILs. The IL program manager is the primary staff person involved with providing the above support; however other DSU staff members provide support based on need and expertise.

- The DSU program manger is assigned to assist the SILC in implementation of the SPIL.
- DSU staff assists in arranging for SILC meetings, including committee meetings, and providing the minutes of the meetings.
- The DSU program manager assists with drafting correspondence and other documents. However, because the documents represent the SILC, they are reviewed, approved, and signed by the chair of the SILC.
- With SILC input, DSU staff draft and complete contracts related to SILS program. In addition the SILC and DSU collaborate in monitoring contract compliance, which includes site visits related to program visits and arranging AUP reviews for financial compliance.
- The DSU program manager reviews possibilities for additional funding for the SILC, CILs and DSU to support IL activities and provides suggestions and support in pursuit of additional funding, if time is available.
- With SILC input, DSU staff develops SILC materials for use in activities such as orientation of new members.
- With SILC input, DSU staff develop marketing strategies to promote the SILC and SILC activities, i.e. logo, brochure, etc.

With regard to resource development, ideas for securing additional funds occur in committees and sometimes responsibility is assigned to committees. Occasionally ideas develop in the full SILC. The committee or SILC may develop a plan for resource development. The most common activity involving the program manager for resource development is drafting grant applications. In general, then one of the CILs is assigned as the applicant for the grant and that CIL reviews the application before it is sent in. Funds are not received by the SILC at this time; either the DSU or a CIL is the recipient of the funds. For instance legislative general funds are always allocated to the DSU for distribution to the CILs. Should the SILC establish itself as a 501 (c) (3) status, one of the activities that have been discussed is that the SILC could be more active in resource development because it would have the capability of receiving its own funds.

### 4.1B Describe other DSU arrangements for the administration of the IL program, if any. $N\!/\!A$

#### Section 5: Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC)

#### 5.1 <u>Resource plan – 34 CFR 364.21(i)</u>

5.1A Describe the resource plan prepared by the SILC in conjunction with the DSU for the provision of resources, including staff and personnel, made available under parts B and C of chapter 1 of title VII, section 101(a)(18) of the Act, and from other public and private sources that may be necessary to carry out the functions of the SILC identified in section 705(c). The description must address the three years of this SPIL.

	2011	2012	2013		
	2011	2012	2013		
Meeting Expenses (includes	\$11,220	\$11,220	<b>\$11,220</b>		
travel to meetings)					
Consulting	\$ 4,500	\$ 4,500	<u>\$ 2,782</u>		
Supplies	\$ 200	\$ 200	<mark>\$ 200</mark>		
Communications	\$ 2,500	\$ 2,500	<u>\$ 2,500</u>		
Travel	\$10,239	\$ 2,907	<mark>\$ 1,000</mark>		
Other:	<u>\$ 500</u>	<u>\$ 500</u>	<u>\$ 500</u>		
Total	\$29,159	\$21,827	\$18,202		

The sources of funding for the above budget are from (Part B + match) and 11,220 (Section 110 + match). The Part B amount varies each year of the SPIL, but the Section 110 + match is expected to stay the same throughout 2008-2011.

In addition to the above budget, there are in-kind contributions from the DSU as described in Section 1.3 B (2).

The SILC has no staff, but benefits from the efforts of the DSU program manager and other support provided through Part B funds assigned to the DSU for administration expenses of Part B grant. While the SILC resource plan seems low, a large portion of the "other SPIL activities" budget is the program manager salary and fringe and a significant amount of the program manager's time is dedicated to activities requested by the SILC.

#### 5.1B Describe how the following SILC resource plan requirements will be addressed: - The SILC's responsibility for the proper expenditure of funds and use of resources that it receives under the resource plan.

The funds supporting the SILC resource plan will be handled through a separate account number within the DSU fiscal operation. While approval within the fiscal system is provided by DSU

Commented [M18]: Update w/ revised budget info; additional Part B COLA

personnel, the SILC and specifically the SILC chair or chair's designee are consulted and provide guidance on expenditures and documentation of the SILC chair's involvement in authorization is maintained. Also, the SILC chair or their designee reconciles recorded expenditures with the approval of expenditures on at least a quarterly basis. The SILC chair is responsible for the appropriate use of the funds and ensuring that expenditures are not made beyond the budget for SILC resources.

A primary task that has been funded under the SILC resource plan in previous SPILs is the IL symposium, which helped to set legislative issues and agendas. The SILC Legislative/Advocacy Committee has developed a new plan for conducting these activities and the CILs have agreed to share part of the cost. The activity that used to cost over \$20,000 from the SILC resource plan, now costs less than \$500 (from the current year's budget and this commitment can be maintained in the above budget. If the SILC cannot cover similar costs in the third year this SPIL, the CILs have committed to covering the expenses.

The SILC has reviewed the budget carefully and believes it can meet its obligations in the SPIL.

The SILC has developed the current budget on historic operational expenses, the one item that is significantly cut back relates to travel to out-of-state conferences. Such travel will probably not be possible in the last year of the SPIL. There have been two recent events that assisted many SILC members to get exposure to the IL and SILC activities in other states, which in the past has been the primary purpose of out-of-state conferences. The first event was a regional conference in Wyoming earlier this year that made it reasonable for almost half of the SILC to attend one conference that allowed for interaction with several states. The second event will be in October 2007. At that time, the Association for Rural Independent Living is holding their national conference in Missoula, Montana. The SILC plans to have a regular SILC meeting in conjunction with this meeting and therefore travel costs for the actual conference will be minimal and all SILC members attending will have exposure to many states and the variety of models of IL, CIL, and SILC activities. Therefore, more SILC members in the third year of this SPIL will have been exposed to the models in other states than would have occurred under the past practice of sending 2 SILC members at a time to 2 or 3 conferences a year at significant expense each year. It is the cutting of out-of-state traffic that is significant difference in this SPIL SILC resource plan from those of previous SPILs. In addition, CIL directors usually attend the conferences involved and can report back to SILC on the information that might be utilized in Montana.

## - Non-inclusion of conditions or requirements in the SILC resource plan that may compromise the independence of the SILC.

In order to access the support of the DSU fiscal services to support the SILC resource plan, the SILC accepts the state rates for mileage, meals, lodging, and council member reimbursement.

#### Reliance, to the maximum extent possible, on the use of resources in existence during the period of implementation of the State plan.

All resources for the SILC resource plan come from Part B funds, Title 1 funds or state matching funds. Since the state legislature only meets every two years, it is only possible to project budget allocations for two years. The state matching funds have been approved for the first year of the plan. The other funds are expected federal allocations.

Commented [M19]: UPDATE W/ Part B ARRA funding for 2011 symposium

Commented [M20]: Revise

#### 5.2 Establishment and Placement – 34 CFR 364.21(a)

## Describe how the establishment and placement of the SILC ensures its independence with respect to the DSU and all other State agencies.

The SILC was established by Executive Order of the Governor. The SILC is not established as an entity within any State agency, including the DSU and is independent of the DSU and all other State agencies. The following is a brief description of the legal status and placement of the SILC:

The SILC is a free-standing body whose members are appointed by the Governor. Although it has autonomy and is self-governing, it does not have legal status independent of the DSU and receives some administrative support from the DSU.

The organization chart that is attached to this document lists the SILC as independent. The SILC is not required to report to any entity in state government and makes reports to RSA to meet federal requirements.

The SILC elects the SILC chair and other officers. The Executive Committee of the SILC is responsible for implementing the intentions of the SILC which are expressed through actions taken during the regular meetings of the SILC. The Executive Committee shall have the authority of the SILC in the management of the business of the SILC between meetings of the SILC, subject to the policies established by the SILC.

The SILC will explore the option of the SILC establishing a 501 (c) (3) to establish a legal status outside of the DSU and to have a mechanism for receiving and independently administering the funds in the SILC resource plan. Further actions and timelines will be determined by the end of the first year of this plan.

Should the above procedure result in a recommendation of not pursuing a 501 (c) (3) or the plan for the pursuit of this status proves unsuccessful, the SILC will review whether or not to pursue other options related to placement within the state government.

#### 5.3 Appointment and Composition - 34 CFR 364.21(b) - (f)

Describe the process used by the State to appoint members to the SILC who meet the composition requirements in section 705(b).

- When a vacancy occurs, the Nominations Committee recruits potential members to the SILC.
- The Nominations Committee makes recommendations to the SILC to fill upcoming or existing vacancies on the SILC based on a review of SILC applications that focuses on federal requirements for SILC membership.
- The SILC approves a list of candidates for appointment to the SILC.
- The SILC approved list of candidates is forwarded to the Governor's office with a request to fill upcoming or existing vacancies on the SILC.
- At all times, the Governor has open applications for all state councils and boards on the Montana website. The Governor may receive applications outside of the SILC review process through this source or other activities of his/her choosing. However,

his staff members are kept aware of the requirements for serving on the SILC and requirements related to maintaining a majority of members who have a disability who are not employed by a CIL or state agency and other membership requirements.

- The Governor selects candidates to fill upcoming or existing vacancies and the Governor's office sends out appointment letters.
- The SILC chair is elected by the voting membership of the SILC in even numbered years. The chair must be a voting member of the SILC.
- Term limits are maintained by keeping records of when a member is appointed to the SILC and the date of the end of their term and which term they are in (1<sup>st</sup> or 2<sup>nd</sup>). This information is distributed to all SILC members and is to be maintained in their SILC manual.

#### 5.4 <u>Staffing – 34 CFR 364.21(j)</u>

#### Describe how the following SILC staffing requirements will be met:

- SILC supervision and evaluation, consistent with State law, of its staff and other personnel as may be necessary to carry out its functions.

The SILC does not have staff. The SILC utilizes DSU staff that is assigned to assist the SILC. The SILC is involved with the evaluation, hiring, and supervision of the DSU program manager who is the primary staff person assigned to assist the SILC. The chair of the SILC is consulted in developing the evaluation of the DSU program manager and will note if there are deficiencies in the program manger's performance with regard to responsibilities related to the SPIL and other duties as assigned by the SILC. Also, the current supervisor of the DSU program manager is the ex-officio member from the DSU on the SILC and is member of SPIL Evaluation Committee which conducts ongoing evaluation of SPIL progress. Therefore, the supervisor will also be monitoring the program manager's activities in this regard.

- Non-assignment of duties to SILC staff and other personnel made available by the DSU, or any other State agency or office that would create a conflict of interest while assisting the SILC in carrying out its duties.

No duties are assigned to DSU personnel made available by the DSU or any other State agency or office that would create a conflict of interest while assisting the SILC in carrying out its duties.

#### **Section 6: Service Provider Requirements**

6.1 <u>Staffing – 34 CFR 364.23; 34 CFR 364.24; 34 CFR 364.31</u>

- Inclusion of personnel who are specialists in the development and provision of IL services and in the development and support of centers.
- Availability, to the maximum extent feasible, of personnel able to communicate (1) with individuals with significant disabilities who rely on alternative modes of communication, such as manual communication, nonverbal communication devices, Braille, or audio tapes and (2) in the native languages of individuals with significant disabilities whose English proficiency is limited and who apply for or receive IL services under title VII of the Act.
- Establishment and maintenance of a program of staff development for all classes of positions involved in providing IL services and, where appropriate, in administering

the CIL program, improving the skills of staff directly responsible for the provision of IL services, including knowledge of and practice in the IL philosophy.

- Affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with significant disabilities on the same terms and conditions required with respect to the employment of individuals with disabilities under section 503 of the Act.

Requirements to meet the above criteria are included in the contracts for IL services. Compliance by the service providers is monitored by reviewing the annual reports of the contractors and site visits described earlier in this plan.

#### 6.2 Fiscal Control and Fund Accounting - 34 CFR 364.34

- Adoption of those fiscal control and fund accounting procedures as may be necessary to ensure the proper disbursement of and accounting for funds made available through parts B and C of chapter 1 of title VII of the Act, in addition to complying with applicable EDGAR fiscal and accounting requirements.

Requirements to meet the above criteria are included in the contracts for IL services. Compliance by the service providers is monitored by reviewing the annual reports of the contractors and reviews of agreed upon procedures described earlier in this plan.

#### 6.3 Recordkeeping, Access and Reporting - 34 CFR 364.35; 34 CFR 364.36; 34 CFR 364.37

- Maintenance of records that fully disclose and document the information listed in 34 CFR 364.35.
- Submission of annual performance and financial reports, and any other reports that the Secretary determines to be appropriate
- Access to the Commissioner and the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of conducting audits, examinations, and compliance reviews, to the information listed in 34 CFR 364.37.

Requirements to meet the above criteria are included in the contracts for IL services. Compliance by the service providers is monitored by reviewing the annual reports of the contractors, site visits described earlier in this plan, and monitoring responses to requests for access by the Commissioner and the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives for the purpose of conducting audits, examinations, and compliance reviews, to the information listed in 34 CFR 364.37

#### 6.4 Eligibility - 34 CFR 364.40; 34 CFR 364.41

- Eligibility of any individual with a significant disability, as defined in 34 CFR 364.4(b), for IL services under the SILS and CIL programs.
- Ability of any individual to seek information about IL services under these programs and to request referral to other services and programs for individuals with significant disabilities.
- Determination of an individual's eligibility for IL services under the SILS and CIL programs in a manner that meets the requirements of 34 CFR 364.51.
- Application of eligibility requirements without regard to age, color, creed, gender, national origin, race, religion, or type of significant disability of the individual applying for IL services.

- Non-exclusion from receiving IL services of any individual who is present in the State and who is otherwise eligible for IL services, based on the imposition of any State or local residence requirement.

Requirements to meet the above criteria are included in the contracts for IL services. Compliance by the service providers is monitored by reviewing the annual reports of the contractors and site visits described earlier in this plan.

#### 6.5 Independent Living Plans - 34 CFR 364.43(c)

- Provision of IL services in accordance with an IL plan complying with Sec. 364.52 and mutually agreed upon by the individuals with significant disabilities and the appropriate service provider staff unless the individual signs a waiver stating that an IL plan is unnecessary.

Requirements to meet the above criteria are included in the contracts for IL services. Compliance by the service providers is monitored by reviewing the annual reports of the contractors and site visits described earlier in this plan.

#### 6.6 Client Assistance Program (CAP) Information - 34 CFR 364.30

- Use of accessible formats to notify individuals seeking or receiving IL services under chapter 1 of title VII about the availability of the CAP program, the purposes of the services provided under the CAP, and how to contact the CAP.

Requirements to meet the above criteria are included in the contracts for IL services. Compliance by the service providers is monitored by reviewing the annual reports of the contractors and site visits described earlier in this plan.

#### 6.7 Protection, Use and Release of Personal Information - 34 CFR 364.56(a)

 Adoption and implementation of policies and procedures meeting the requirements of 34 CFR 364.56(a), to safeguard the confidentiality of all personal information, including photographs and lists of names.

Requirements to meet the above criteria, as well as HIPAA requirements, are included in the contracts for IL services. Compliance by the service providers is monitored by reviewing the annual reports of the contractors and site visits described earlier in this plan.

#### Section 7: Evaluation

Describe the method that will be used to periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the plan in meeting the objectives established in Section 1. The description must include the State's evaluation of satisfaction by individuals with significant disabilities who have participated in the program. <u>34 CFR 364.38</u>

The following narrative describes the state's evaluation plan, including methods for the periodic evaluation of the effectiveness of the SPIL in meeting the objectives.

- Yearly self-evaluations by the CILs to meet the expectations of the 704 reporting system.
- Quarterly Part B and General Fund reports are prepared by the CILs and reviewed by the SILC and program manager from the DSU. The reports contain consumer service information as well as progress on certain SPIL objectives and contract compliance requirements.

Commented [M21]: Julie will check on current SPIL instrument language w/ respect to old SPIL instrument

- Every-other-year on-site reviews for the overall monitoring and evaluation of Part B and State General Funds by the SILC and IL program manager from the DSU.
- Public hearing procedures with emphasis placed on consumer input.
- Satisfaction surveys distributed and tabulated annually. Results will be provided to the CILs and SILC to be used to assist independent living programs to improve, change, or support center activities.
- The SILC SPIL Evaluation Committee and the DSU, with participation of the CILs, will review, evaluate and report on compliance of the SPIL. The SILC will review and discuss progress on achieving SPIL objectives at least annually at a SILC meeting.
- At the SILC symposium, evaluation forms will be distributed, collected and tabulated to assess the symposium success and assist with planning subsequent symposiums.
- Discussions/interviews with consumers.
- Within one month of the initiation of the plan, an evaluation chart will be drafted that indicates milestones related to responsibilities in the SPIL, including reoccurring responsibilities, the time line will also include responsibility parties for various activities of the SPIL. The SPIL Evaluation Committee will review the evaluation chart on at least twice a year to monitor progress of SPIL activities. Should there be a need for a plan to address areas where activities are not meeting the expectations of the SPIL a strategy will be developed by the committee to address the issue and forwarded to the Executive Committee for approval and implementation.

#### Section 8: State-Imposed Requirements

The following narrative describes the State's evaluation plan, including methods for the periodic evaluation of the effectiveness of the SPIL in meeting the objectives. Identify any State-imposed requirements contained in the provisions of this SPIL. Indicate N/A if not applicable. <u>34 CFR 364.20(h)</u>

In order to utilize the state accounting system for fiscal transactions the SILC agrees to follow state rates for lodging, mileage, and meals.

Grant funds coming into the state must be appropriated through the legislature under the following guidelines:

MT Constitution, article 5, section 11, subsections 4 & 5.

(4) A general appropriation bill shall contain only appropriations for the ordinary expenses of the legislative, executive, and judicial branches, for interest on the public debt, and for public schools. Every other appropriation shall be made by a separate bill, containing but one subject.(5) No appropriation shall be made for religious, charitable, industrial, educational, or benevolent purposes to any private individual, private association, or private corporation not under control of the state.

Also, monitoring of compliance related to fiscal issues is necessary to ensure compliance of contracts related to the SPIL.

The state charges indirect costs to the Part B grant and any other funds awarded to the DSU to support the independent living program.

### APPENDIX ORGANIZATION CHART

49 of 50

#### DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES DISABILITY SERVICES DIVISION VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION PROGRAMS

